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IN THE MATTER OF
PERFORMANCE SAILCRAFT INC.

CONSENT- ORDER, ETC., INF REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SECTION 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-2922. Complaint, May 2, 1978 —Decision, May 2, 1978

Consent order requiring a Pointe-Claire, Quebec, Canada, manufacturer and
distributor of fiberglass sailboats and accessories, among other things, to
cease entering into or enforcing any form of agreement with its dealers
concerning the retail price of its products; restricting territories in which its
dealers may advertise or sell its products; and terminating or threatening to
terminate dealers who do not follow its pricing and territorial instructions.
Further, any future price lists distributed by the firm must note that the
prices are suggested or approximate.

Appearances

For the Commission: Allen R. Caskie.
For the respondent: R. Warden McKimm, Ottawa, Canada.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
as amended, and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act,
the Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that
Performance Sailcraft Inc., a corporation, more particularly de-
scribed and referred to hereinafter as respondent, has violated the
provisions of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act (38 Stat.
719, as amended; 15 U.S.C. 45), and it appearing to the Commission
that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public
interest, hereby issues its complaint stating its charges with respect
thereto as follows:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Performance Sailcraft Inc. is a corpora-
tion organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of
the laws of the province of Quebec, Canada, with its principal office
and place of business at 91 Hymus Boulevard, Pointe-Claire, Quebec,
. Canada. : v

Par. 2. Respondent is a manufacturer and distributor of small
recreational sailboats of fiberglass construction and accessories to be
used therewith.

In 1975, respondent’s gross income from sales of said products was
$3.6 million, over $2 million of which was derived from sales in the
United States.

PAR. 3. In the course of conduct of its business of manufacturing
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and distributing sailboats and accessories, respondent is engaged in
transacting business within the United States through the following
activities, among others: the placement of advertising in United
States magazines and newspapers of interstate circulation; the
presence within the United States and participation of respondent’s
salesmen at numerous trade shows; and the C.0.D. shipment of
respondent’s products from its principal place of business to
independent dealers located in various States throughout the United
States who sell the products to consumers. -

There is now and has been for several years past, a constant,
substantial and increasing flow of such products in or affecting
“commerce” as that term is defined in the Federal Trade Commis-
sion Act, as amended.

PARr. 4. In the course and conduct of its business in or affecting
commerce, except to the extent that competition has been hampered
or restrained by reason of the practices hereinafter alleged,
" respondent has been and is now in competition with other persons,
firms and corporations engaged in the manufacture, sale and
distribution of said products.

PARr. 5. Respondent, in combination, agreement, or understanding
with certain of its authorized dealers, or with the cooperation or
acquiescence of other of its dealers, has for the last several years -
been engaged in a planned course of action to fix, establish and
maintain certain resale or retail prices at which said products are
resold. In furtherance of said planned course of action, respondent
has for the past several years engaged in the following acts or
practices, among others:

(a) Regularly furnishing its dealers with price lists and necessary
~ supplements thereto containing certain resale or retail prices;

(b) Establishing agreements, understandings, or arrangements
with its dealers, as a condition precedent to the granting of a
dealership, that such dealers will maintain certain resale or retail
prices; ‘ :

(¢) Informing its dealers, by direct or indirect means, that
respondents expect and require such dealers to maintain and enforce
certain resale or retail prices or such dealerships will be terminated,;

(d) Soliciting and obtaining from its dealers cooperation and
assistance in identifying and reporting any dealer who advertises, or
offers to sell, or sells said products at prices lower than certain resale
or retail prices.

PARr. 6. Respondent, in combination, agreement, or understanding
with certain of its authorized dealers, or with the cooperation or
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o engaged ina planned course of action whose effect has been to foster,
- promote, mamtam and support its ‘policies of restricting dealer
 competition in the United States in the marketing, sale, “and
dxstnbutlon of ﬁberglass sailboats by d1rect1ng, encouraging, threat-
. ening, warning, and/or otherwise prohibiting its dealers from selling
. or advertlsmg the sale of saJd products ‘outside of their allocated -
terntones ' ’
. Par. 1. These aforesaJd acts and practxces as a.lleged are ‘
. prejudlclal and injurious to the pubhc ‘have a tendency to hinder,
“restrict,  restrain and prevent competition and have actually
hindered, _restricted, restramed and prevented competition; and

o constitute unfair acts or practices and unfair methods of competition

k:—{‘i‘:' in or affecting commerce within the meaning and intent of Section 5
of the Federal Trade Commlssmn Act as amended ‘

DECISION AND ORDBR

o The Federal Trade Commxssmn havmg mltlated an mvestlgatlon
: of certain acts and practlces of the respondent named in the caption
. hereof, and the respondent having been furmshed thereafter with a-
copy of a draft of complaint which the Washington, D.C. Regional
Office proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration
“and which, if issued by the Commission, would charge respondent
- 'with vmlatlon of the Federal Trade Commlsswn Act as amended
and o
- The respondent and its counsel and counsel for the Commission -
‘ havmg thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent
" order, an admission by the respondent of all the jurisdictional facts
“set forth in the aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the
signing of said agreement is for settlement purposes only and does
not constitute an admmsron by respondent that the law has been
‘violated as alleged in such complaint, and waivers and other
provisions as required by the Commission’s Rules; and |
The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
- having determmed it had reason to believe that the respondent has
~ violated the said Act, and that complaint should issue stating its
charges in that respect and having thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record
for a penod of sixty (60) days, now in further conformity with the
procedure hereby issues its complaint, makes the following jurisdic-
tional findings, and enters the following order:
1. Respondent Performance Sailcraft Inc. is a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the province of Quebec, Canada, with its principal office and
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place of business at 91 Hymus Boulevard, Pointe-Clare, Quebec,
Canada. _

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of the proceeding and the respondent, and the proceeding is
in the public interest.

ORDER

1. It is ordered, That respondent Performance Sailcraft Inc., and
its subsidiaries, divisions, licensees, successors, assigns, officers,
directors, agents, representatives and employees, directly or indi-
rectly, or through any corporate or other device, in connection with
the distribution, advertising, offering for sale, or sale of fiberglass
sailboats and accessories, or any other products (hereinafter referred
to in this order as “said products”), in or affecting commerce, as
“commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, shall forthwith cease and desist from:

A. Establishing, maintaining or enforcing any contract, agree-
ment, understanding or arrangement fixing, establishing, maintain-
ing, controlling, influencing or enforcing in any way or to any extent,
directly or indirectly, the price at which any of said products is
advertised, sold or offered for sale at retail.

B. Requiring any dealer or prospective dealer to enter into any
oral or written agreement or understanding that such dealer or
prospective dealer will maintain any resale or retail price for any of
said products as a condition of buying any of said products.

C. Requesting or requiring any dealer or prospective dealer,
either directly or indirectly, to report any dealer, person or firm who
does not adhere to any resale or retail price for any of said products,
or acting on reports so obtained by refusing or threatening to refuse
sales to any dealer, person or firm so reported.

D. Threatening to terminate or terminating, either directly or
indirectly, any dealer for failure to observe, maintain or advertise
respondent’s suggested resale prices for said products.

E. Requiring, from any dealer charged with price cutting or
failure to adhere to any resale or retail price, a promise or assurance
to adhere to any resale or retail price for any of said products as a
condition precedent to any future sales to said dealer.

F. Publishing, disseminating or circulating any price list, price
book, price tag, advertising or promotional material, or other
document indicating any resale or retail price without stating on
each page (of such list, book, tag, advertising or promotional
material or other document), on which a price appears, that the price
is suggested or approximate.
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G. Imposing or attempting to impose any limitations or restric-
tions respecting the territories in which said products may be
advertised or sold by its dealers.

H. Attempting to enter into, entering into, continuing, maintain-
ing, or enforcing any contract, combination, understanding or
agreement to limit, allocate, or restrict the territory in which said
products may be advertised or sold by its dealers.

I. Requesting or requiring any dealer or prospective dealer,
either directly or indirectly, to report any dealer, person or firm who
does not adhere to any territorial restriction in the advertising and
sale of any of said products, or acting on reports so obtained by
refusing or threatening to refuse sales to any dealer, person or firm

" 80 reported.

J. Threatening to terminate or terminating, either directly or
indirectly, any dealer for failure to limit or restrict the advertising
and sale of said products to a specified territory.

Provided, that none of the provisions herein shall prohibit
respondent from designating geographical areas within which a
dealer may agree to devote his best efforts to the sale of said products
(hereinafter “area of primary. responsibility”) as a condition of
becoming a dealer or maintaining a dealership, provided that such
dealers are told that said area is not exclusive and does not place a
territorial restriction upon the sale of said products.

Provided further, that none of the provisions herein shall prohibit
respondent from terminating dealers for lawful business reasons.

II. It is further ordered, That the respondent shall within sixty
(60) days after the service upon it of this order, mail a copy of this
order to each of its dealers of said products in the United States and,
during the five (5) year period of time following the date of service of
this order, to all of its future dealers in the United States at the time
said dealers are opened as accounts, under cover of the letter
annexed hereto as Exhibit A, and furnish the Commission proof of
the mailing thereof in the file required to be maintained under
Paragraph V herein.

II. It is further ordered, That respondent shall forthwith
distribute a copy of this order to each of its operating divisions
engaged in the manufacture, sale, marketing and distribution of said
-products and to all of its sales personnel connected with the sale,
marketing, and distribution of said products and shall instruct each
sales person employed by it now or in the future to read this order
and to be familiar with its provisions.

IV. 1t is further ordered, That respondent notify the Commlssmn
at least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in the
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corporate respondent such as dissolution, assignment or sale
resulting in the emergence of a successor corporation, the creation of
or dissolution of subsidiaries or any other such change in the
corporation which may affect compliance obligations arising out of
the order.

V. Itis further ordered, That the respondent herein, for a period
of five (5) years from the date of this signing, establish and maintain
a file of all records referring or relating to respondent’s refusal to
sell said products to any of respondent’s dealers, which file shall
contain the names and addresses of all dealers with whom
respondent has refused to deal since the effective date of the order, a
description of the reason for the refusal, the date of the refusal, and a
record of a communication to each such dealer explaining respon-
dent’s refusal to sell said products, and which file will be made
available on reasonable notice for inspection at the Commission’s
offices in Washington, D.C.

V1. 1Itis further ordered, That the respondent herein shall within
sixty (60) days after service upon it of this order file with the
Commission a report, in writing, setting forth in detail the manner
and form in which it has complied with this order.

ExHiBiT A
(Letterhead of Performance Sailcraft Inc.)

Dear Dealer:

PSI has entered into an agreement with the Federal Trade Commission relating to our
territorial allocation and pricing policies. A copy of the consent order entered into
pursuant to that agreement is enclosed herewith.

We have entered into this agreement solely for the purpose of settling a dispute with
the Commission, and the agreement and consent order are not to be construed as an
admission that we have violated any of the laws administered by the Commission, or
that any of the allegations in the complaint are true and correct. Instead, the order
merely relates to our activities in the future.

In order that you may readily understand the terms of the consent order, we have set
forth the essentials of the agreement with the Commission, although you must realize
that the consent order itself is controlling rather than the following explanation of its
provisions: )

(1) Our dealers are free to set their own retail or resale prices for the products
covered by the consent order.

(2) We will not solicit, invite or encourage any dealer or any other person to report
any dealer not following any retail or resale price for any of said products, and,
furthermore, will not act on any such report sent to us.

(8) We will not require or induce our dealers to refrain from advertising said
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(4) As you know, it is a condition of becoming a de:a]er or maintaining a dealership
that you agree to devote your best sales efforts in your designated geographical
territory. However, you are free to advertise and sell any of the products covered by
the consent order outside of these designated territories.

Sincerely,
(Officer)
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IN THE MATTER OF

CHRYSLER CORPORATION, ET AL.

Docket 9072. Interlocutory Order, May 8, 1978

Denial of complaint counsel’s motion to enforce subpoena duces tecum against
present owner of records sought, a purchaser of the assets of the cerporation
named in the subpoena.

ORDER DENYING MoTION TO ENFORCE SUBPOENA DUCES
TEcuM

On February 13, 1978, Administrative Law Judge Lewis F. Parker
certified to the Commission the motion of complaint counsel herein
for enforcement of a subpoena duces tecum issued in November,
1976,* directing Northline Dodge, Inc., a California corporation, to
produce certain documents relating, inter alia, to motor vehicle
repossessions in which -it had been involved during a specified time
period. A partial return was made, and complaint counsel were
pursuing further compliance when, on July 29, 1977, complaint
counsel were advised that the assets of the California corporation
had been sold to a Texas corporation having different principals but
the same name, and the California corporation dissolved. The assets
transferred evidently include the records sought, to the extent they
exist, but complaint counsel assert that the Texas corporation has
declined to take the effort necessary to make any further return on
the subpoena. Matters were in this posture when complaint counsel
moved for enforcement of the subpoena.

Complaint counsel’s motion does not attempt to propound a theory
for enforcing a subpoena duces tecum against a corporation which
simply purchased assets from the corporation against which it was
issued. It is patent, however, that mere identity of name between the
two corporations has no bearing on the matter. The subpoena was
issued against and served upon a particular legal entity. While that
legal entity retains the capacity to be sued for some period of time
after formal dissolution, it evidently no longer possesses the
documents sought. The legal entity which does possess the docu-
ments, on the other hand, has never been subpoenaed to produce
them. Moreover, there is nothing in the record to indicate that the
new entity stands in the position of a legal successor to the dissolved
corporation so as to enable the outstanding subpoena to be enforced

' The exact date does not appear from the materials before us. Indeed, as complaint counsel note, the copy of
the subpoena attached to the motion herein does not show on its face that it was authorized by the ALJ. Because of
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against the Texas corporation. In these circumstances, an order that
the November 1976 subpoena be enforced would appear to be an
exercise in futility. Accordingly,

1t is ordered, That complaint counsel’s Motion to Enforce
Subpoena Duces Tecum be, and it hereby is, denied.?

* This ruling, of course, in no way preclud plaint 1 from seeking to subpoena the documents
directly from the new corporation.
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IN THE MATTER OF

AMERICAN DENTAL ASSOCIATION, ET AL.

Docket 9093. Interlocutory Order, May 8, 1978

Denial of supplemental motions of subpoenaed third parties to quash and/or limit
subpoenas duces tecum.

ORDER DENYING MOTION TO QUASH AND/OR LiMIT SUBPOENAS
Duces TEcuMm

This matter comes to the Commission upon supplemental motions
to quash and/or limit subpoenas duces tecum filed on behalf of
Henry L. Ernstthal and the California Dental Association (“CDA”)
and Kathie Boise and the Orange County Dental Society, Inc.
(“OCDS”). Because of the unusual posture of this motion, it is
‘necessary to chronicle the prior developments in some detail.

The Commission issued an administrative complaint in this
proceeding on January 4, 1977. In the course of the administrative
proceedings, the administrative law judge (“ALJ”), at the request of
Commission complaint counsel, on November 16, 1977, issued
subpoenas duces tecum to CDA and OCDS pursuant to Section 3.34(b)
of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedures. CDA and
OCDS filed a joint motion to quash the subpoenas on December 1,
1977, which motion was denied by the ALJ on December 15, 1977.
CDA and OCDS then filed a joint motion on January 3, 1978, seeking
extraordinary leave to appeal to the Commission the denial of their
motion to quash. On January 6, 1978, this motion was denied by the
ALJ, who established January 23, 1978, as the final date for
compliance with the subpoenas. CDA and OCDS moved before the
ALJ on January 18, 1978, for reconsideration of his denial of their
motion to quash and their motion for appeal to the Commission,
arguing for the first time that the Commission lacked jurisdiction
over the parties. The ALJ denied this motion on January 23, 1978.

" Upon the parties’ subsequent refusal to comply with the subpoenas,
on February 17, 1978, the Commission granted complaint counsel’s
motion requesting court enforcement of the subpoenas and enforce-
ment papers were filed on March 14, 1978.

In an order issued April 19, 1978, the District Court for the District
of Columbia concluded that it was inappropriate to consider the
parties’ jurisdictional challenge to the Commission’s pending adjudi-
cative proceeding. However, the court found that the ALJ had not
had an opportunity to consider some of the parties’ non-jurisdiction-
al challenges. Accordingly, the court’s arder ma—:- .
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present to the ALJ by April 21, 1978, any of the non-jurisdictional
challenges which they raised in the enforcement proceedings but
which were not initially presented to the ALJ. The court’s order
further provides that the ALJ shall rule on any such challenges no
later than April 28, 1978, and that after the ALJ has so ruled (and
the Commission, if requested, has reviewed the matter), CDA and
OCDS may assert in the enforcement proceeding any non-jurisdic-
tional challenges to the instant subpoenas duces tecum. The order
specifically indicates that the court will retain jurisdiction over the
Commission’s present enforcement petition pending the ALJ’s
consideration (and the Commission’s, if so requested) of non-jurisdic-
tional challenges not previously presented by the parties to the ALJ.

Pursuant to this order, CDA and OCDS filed the instant
supplemental motion to quash and/or limit the subpoenas duces
tecum on April 21, 1978, arguing that the specifications of the
subpoenas are overly broad, seek irrelevant information, and are too
indefinite. Additionally, the parties contend that compliance with
the subpoenas would be unduly burdensome and that they are '
entitled to a protective order for confidential documents. By orders
of April 28, May 1, and May 2, 1978, the ALJ issued a protective
order but otherwise denied the supplemental motion and certified
the matter to the Commission for its consideration in view of the
order of the district court.?

Ordinarily, under the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Proce-
dure the supplemental motion would have been untimely since no
good cause for a belated, piecemeal submission has been shown to
justify an extension under Section 3.34(b). Moreover, even had it
been timely, the ALJ’s denial of that motion, like other pre-trial
discovery rulings, would not be reviewed by the Commission absent a
showing (not made here) of a clear abuse of discretion. See, e.g.,
Exxon Corp., 85 F.T.C. 91 (1975). The opposition of CDA and OCDS to
court enforcement of the subpoena did not focus on a supplemental
motion to quash as a form of relief, and the status of such motion
under the Commission’s Rules was not addressed in the litigation
papers. Accordingly, the court had no reason to know that the review
apparently contemplated by the court’s order would ordinarily be
unavailable, and it is open to question whether the court intended to
require the Commission to engage in extraordinary review in this
matter.

! We understand that the May 31, 1978 phi date established by the ALJ is contingent upon the district
court's enfi t of the subp .
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Nevertheless, in a spirit of compliance with the court’s order and
to forestall further delay in enforcement of the subpoenas,?® the
Commission has reviewed the ALJ’s denial of the supplemental
motion. OQur review convinces us that there is no showing sufficient
to warrant reversal of the ALJ’s well-considered ruling. Accordingly,

It is ordered, That the Supplemental Motion to Quash and/or
Limit the Subpoenas Duces Tecum is denied.

* We assume that the court did not intend to endorse any generally-applicable departure from the usual
principle requiring exhaustion of administrative remedies, under which legal or factual arguments not tendered in
a timely motion to quash a subp would be d d waived.
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IN THE MATTER OF
GEORGIA-PACIFIC CORPORATION

MODIFYING ORDER IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATIONS OF THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND SEC. 7 OF THE CLAYTON
' ACTS

Docket 8843. Final Order, Dec. 26, 1972—Modifying Order, May 12, 1978

This order modifies a final order to cease and desist issued December 26, 1972, 38
FR 1581, 81 F.T.C. 984, by changing Paragraphs 6 and 7 to permit acquisitions
of $1,000,000 or less without prior Commission approval, and by substituting
for Paragraph 10, one that limits reporting obligations to those corporate
alterations that may have a significant affect on compliance.

ORDER MODIFYING ORDER TO CEASE AND DESIST

By a petition filed March 31, 1978, and revised by a petition filed
April 26, 1978, respondent Georgia-Pacific Corporation asked the
Commission to reopen this proceeding to modify Paragraphs 6, 7, and
10 of the consent order issued by the Commission on December 26,
. 1972

Paragraph 7 of the consent order requires, inter alia, that Georgia-
Pacific obtain Commission approval before purchasing non-softwood
- plywood assets when the seller is engaged in softwood plywood
manufacturing. Georgia-Pacific contends that this reporting require-
ment is overbroad because the consent order was aimed at
preventing Georgia-Pacific from increasing its market power in the
softwood plywood industry, and it is unlikely that its ability to
control price or entry in the relevant market would be affected when
the acquisition is of non-softwood plywood assets..

Respondent also requests modification of Paragraphs 6 and 7 of
the order so that it need not obtain approval of acquisitions of
softwood plywood assets where the purchase price is less than 1
million dollars. Respondent believes that purchases of this size are
de minimis and “would not undercut the effectiveness of the consent
order, but it would reduce needless administrative burdens arising
from compliance with the consent order. . . .” More precisely,
respondent contends that it is unable to bid at auctions for softwood
plywood equipment owned by softwood plywood firms, as these
auctions often take place upon relatively short notice which
precludes the soliciting and receiving of prior approval from the
Commission. Because of their de minimis nature, these asset
acquisitions, respondent believes, would likely be approved by the
Commission.



882 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Modifying Order 91 F.T.C

The final modification sought by Georgia-Pacific relates tc
Paragraph 10 of the consent order. This paragraph requires
respondent to notify the Commission of the creation or dissolution of
subsidiaries even if the corporate change does not affect compliance
obligations arising from the order. Respondent is a large, multi-

-national corporation which periodically must, it represents, “make
various adjustments in its corporate structure which do not or would
not affect its compliance obligations.” The modification proposed by

. respondent will limit its reporting obligations under Paragraph 10 to

those corporate alterations that may have significance from a

compliance standpoint.

The Bureau of Competition filed on May 1, 1978, an answer to
respondent’s petition. The Bureau does not oppose the modifications.

We agree that the petition should be granted. The modifications
proposed by respondent should not affect adversely the purpose of
the order, which, is to say, the aspects of the order complained of by
respondent are either unnecessary or overbroad, and they are,
therefore, unwarranted. :

Accordingly, :

It is ordered, That the proceeding be, and it hereby is, reopened.

It is further ordered, That the order to cease and desist be, and it
hereby is, modified by substituting for Paragraphs 6, 7 and 10 of the
order, the following:

PARAGRAPH 6

It is further ordered, That for ten (10) years from the effective date,
respondent shall cease and desist from acquiring, directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, or otherwise, for its use in the
manufacture of softwood plywood, from any person, firm or
corporation other than the manufacturer thereof or a regular dealer
or distributor of such equipment in the ordinary course of such
dealer’s or distributor’s business:

(A) Any equipment specifically designed for the manufacture of
softwood plywood;

(B) Any equipment specifically designed and theretofore used in
the manufacture of softwood plywood; and

(C) Any equipment thereafter converted by respondent, directly or
indirectly, into equipment specifically designed for the manufacture
of softwood plywood; unless such acquisitions amount to $1,000,000
or less from any one person, firm or corporation in any twelve month
period in the absence of vrior Federal Trade Commission anoroval of
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PARAGRAPH 7

It is further ordered, That for a period of ten (10) years from the
effective date, respondent shall cease and desist from acquiring,
directly or indirectly, through subsidiaries, or otherwise, the whole
or any part of the share capital or assets of, or any other interest in,
any other person, firm or corporation engaged in the manufacture of
softwood plywood in the United States immediately prior to such
acquisition, unless such asset acquisitions amount to $1,000,000 or
less from any one person, firm or corporation in any twelve-month
period, in the absence of prior Federal Trade Commission approval of
such acquisition; Provided, however, That nothing contained in this
paragraph shall preclude or be deemed to preclude respondent from
acquiring timberlands or any interest therein or timber in any form
(including but not limited to stumpage, logs, veneers, chips, sawdust
and cores); and, Further provided, That nothing contained in this
paragraph shall apply to purchases of lumber, plywood, machinery,
or any other product, by respondent in the regular conduct of its
business from suppliers in the regular conduct of their businesses, or
to sales made by respondent in the regular conduct of its business.

PARAGRAPH 10

It is further ordered, That for a period of ten (10) years from the
effective date of the order entered by the Commission on December
26, 1972, respondent shall notify the Commission at least thirty (30)
days prior to any proposed change in the corporate respondent which
may affect compliance obligations arising out of the order, such as
dissolution, assignment or sale resulting in the emergence of a
successor corporation, or the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries or
joint ventures.
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IN THE MATTER OF

BELTONE ELECTRONICS CORPORATION, ET AL.

Docket 8928. Interlocutory Order, May 12, 1978

Remand for additional hearings ordered for consideration of customer and
territorial restriction on interbrand and intrabrand competition.

ORDER REMANDING FOR ADDITIONAL HEARINGS

By order of July 5, 1977, the Commission directed the parties in
this proceeding to submit supplemental briefs concerning the impact
of Continental T.V., Inc. v. GTE Sylvania, Inc., 433 U.S. 36 (1977).
After careful review of the briefs submitted by the parties and the
record developed before the administrative law judge (“ALJ”), the
Commission has determined that a limited remand of the case is
necessary for consideration of the impact of respondents’ customer
and territorial restrictions upon both interbrand and intrabrand
competition. '

The complaint in this proceeding was issued on May 8, 1973,
charging respondents with various violations of Section 5, including,
inter alia, imposition of exclusive dealing, maintenance of territorial
and customer restrictions, use of certain post-termination restraints,
and misappropriation of the names and addresses of dealers’
customers. After extensive pretrial discovery and 115 days of
hearings in Washington, D.C., Chicago, San Francisco, and New
Orleans, the ALJ filed his initial decision on September 7, 1976,
finding that the respondents had engaged in the following unfair
acts and practices and unfair methods of competition in violation of
Section 5:

(A) Requiring their selected dealers to sell Beltone products within
assigned geographic territories;

(B) Requiring their selected dealers to deal exclusively in Beltone
hearing aids:

(C) Prohibiting their dealers from dealing with certain potential
customers;

(D) Preventing others, not their dealers, from dealing in or
repairing Beltone products; and

(E) Appropriating and using for their own purposes the names and
addresses of their dealers’ customers. |

The ALJ’s legal analysis of respondents’ territorial and customer
restrictions (ID 79-82)* leaves no doubt that he examined these

! We recognize, of course, that respondents denv the existence of anv territorial or customer restrictions and
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particular restraints in light of the then-prevaﬂmg Dper se standard of
United States v. Arnold, Schwinn & Co., 388 U.S. 365 (1967), under
the rationale that conduct violating the Sherman Act would
necessarily violate Section 5 of the FT'C Act. Moreover, complaint
counsel’s trial and answering briefs indicate that they contemplated
application of a per se theory throughout the proceeding. Although
the record contains some discussion of the competition effects of
respondents’ territorial and customer restrictions, it is clear that the
evidence introduced provides, on balance, an incomplete picture of
the interbrand and intrabrand effects of these practices. Hence, the
need to premise our disposition of this case upon a thorough
examination of the competitive impact of these specific restraints
leads us to conclude that we should remand the proceeding?
Accordingly,

It is ordered, That this matter is remanded to the administrative
law judge for an expedited proceeding solely to receive additional
evidence regarding the effects of respondents’ territorial and
customer restrictions upon interbrand and intrabrand competition.

It is further ordered, That, after the receipt of such additional
evidence, the administrative law judge certify the record to the
Commission together with any findings of fact or conclusions of law
which he may make in light of the additional evidence.

2 In view of the 1 t of lative dealer testimony evident in the present record, we wish to
emphasize that an expeditious resolution of the issues on remand is in the best interest of all parties. To this end,
stipulations should be freely utilized to avoid the introduction of dup]lcahve testlmony In any event, we assume
that the ALJ will exercise appropriate control over the ipt of additi v
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IN THE MATTER OF

SUNKIST GROWERS, INC.

Docket 9100. Interlocutory Order, May 15, 1978

Application for review of ALJ order denied for failure to raise an issue having
substantial ground for difference of opinion.

ORDER DENYING APPLICATION FOR REVIEW

Respondent, Sunkist Growers Inc. (“Sunkist”), has filed an
Application for Review of Order Denying Respondent’s Motion to
Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction pursuant to Rule 3.23(b). Because
Sunkist has failed to raise an issue as to which there is substantial
ground for difference of opinion, the Application for Review is
denied. While further elaboration is unnecessary, a brief explanation
of the reasons for our decision seems warranted.

Sunkist argues that the Commission lacks jurisdiction over the
subject matter of this proceeding by reason of the Capper-Volstead
Act, 7 US.C. 291, 292. Alternatively, Sunkist argues that primary
jurisdiction of this matter rests with the Secretary of Agriculture.

It is well settled that the Capper-Volstead Act does not vest
exclusive jurisdiction of antitrust claims against agricultural cooper-
atives in the Secretary of Agriculture. Maryland & Virginia Milk
Producers Ass’n, Inc. v. United States, 362 U.S. 458, 462-64 (1960);
United States v. Borden Co., 308 U.S. 188, 205-06 (1939); Central .
California Lettuce Producers Cooperative, Dkt. 8970, slip opinion at
4-5 (July 25, 1977) [90 F.T.C. at 53,54], Cf. Washington Crab Ass’n, 66
F.T.C. 45 (1964). While conceding that federal courts have jurisdic-
tion over monopolization suits initiated by the Department of
Justice, Sunkist argues that the Commission lacks similar jurisdic-
tion with respect to complaints issued under the Federal Trade
Commission Act. Respondent, however, cites no authority in support
of this anomalous position. The complaint alleges that Sunkist is a
corporation within the meaning of Section 4 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act which has engaged in unfair methods of competi-
tion. It thus appears that the complaint states a cause of action
under Section 5 against a respondent which is subject to the
Commission’s jurisdiction.

Respondent’s alternative argument is that “primary jurisdiction
rests with the Secretary of Agriculture.” As we explained in
Perpetual Federal Savings & Loan Ass’n, Dkt. 9083 (December 6,
1977) [90 F.T.C. 608}, it is not Wholly clear that the doctrme of

it nwerr rmrmdiadlac; cmllal cmmeilaae 4 a4 2P
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its jurisdiction until an administrative agency has determined a
particular question, applies as between agencies. Id., slip opinion at
24 n. 28 [90 F.T.C. at 662]. Assuming, arguendo, the applicability of
the doctrine, it appears that the tests of Ricci v. Chicago Mercantile
Exchange, 409 U.S. 289 (1973), are not met. The cases cited above
indicate that the provisions of the Capper-Volstead Act are not
incompatible with the maintenance of this action. Moreover, the
Capper-Volstead Act gives the Secretary of Agriculture authority to
adjudicate whether a cooperative association “monopolizes or
restrains trade ... to such an extent that the price of any
agricultural product is unduly enhanced thereby.” On the other
~ hand, a monopolization complaint* under Section 2 of the Sherman
Act or Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act involves only
an inquiry into whether monopoly power exists, and whether that
monopoly power has been willfully acquired or maintained, United
. States v. Grinnell Corp., 384 U.S. 563, 570-71 (1966), without any
necessary showing of price enhancement. For this reason, it does not
appear that facets of this dispute are necessarily within the
jurisdiction of the Secretary of Agriculture, nor that adjudication by
the Secretary would be of material aid in resolving the issues posed
by the complaint. With respect to the latter point, it is clear that an
adjudication by the Secretary that respondent had not unduly
enhanced prices would in no way dispose of, or shed much significant
light on, the issues in this case. Thus, it does not appear that the
doctrine of primary jurisdiction requires us to defer to the Secretary
of Agriculture. Accordingly,

1t is ordered, That Respondent’s Application for Review be, and the
same hereby is, denied.

! We note that while the gravamen of the complaint is monopolization, other charges, including violations of
Section 7 of the Clayton Act, are P d within the laint
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IN THE MATTER OF
VERRAZZANO TRADING CORPORATION, ET AL.

ORDER, OPINION, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, WOOL PRODUCTS LABELING
AND TEXTILE FIBER PRODUCTS IDENTIFICATION ACTS

Docket 9038. Complaint, June 24, 1975 — Final Order, May 15, 1978

This order, among other things, requires a New York City importer and distributor
of wool and textile fiber products, and four affiliated companies, to cease
misrepresenting or failing to properly disclose the fiber content of wool and
textile fiber products, and the residual shrinkage of such products. Addition-
ally, the firms must file bond with the Secretary of the Treasury before
participating in the importation of wool and textile fiber fabrics; and provide
purchasers of mislabeled merchandise with a copy of the order.

Appearances

For the Commission: Ellen Zweibel and Judith K. Braun.
For the respondents: David A. Botwinik, Pavia & Harcourt, New
York City.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
the Wool Products Labeling Act of 1939 and the Textile Fiber
Products Identification Act, and by virtue of the authority vested in
it by said Acts, the Federal Trade Commission, having reason to
believe that Verrazzano Trading Corporation, a corporation, Francis-
co Datini Inc., a corporation, Lanificio Tuscania Inc., a corporation,
Lima Textiles Inc., a corporation, and Walter Banci, individually and
as an agent for said corporations and as an officer of Lanificio
Tuscania Inc. and Lima Textiles Inc. and as a partner trading and
doing business as Lanificio Walter Banci s.a.s., hereinafter referred
to as respondents, have violated the provisions of said Acts and the
rules and regulations promulgated [2] under the Wool Products
Labeling Act of 1939 and the Textile Fiber Products Identification
Act, and it now appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it
in respect thereto would be in the public interest, hereby issues its
complaint stating its charges in that respect as follows:

ParaGRAPH 1. Respondent Verrazzano Trading Corporation is a
corporation organized, existing and doing business under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of New York, with its main office and
princinal place of husiness at. 2 Penn Plaza New Vark Naw Vol



VERRAZZANO TRADING CORP., ET AL. 889
888 , Complaint

existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of New York, with its main office and principal place of
business at 2 Penn Plaza, New York, New York.

Respondent Lanificio Tuscania Inc. is a corporation organized,
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of New York with its main office and principal place of
business at 2 Penn Plaza, New York, New York.

Respondent Lima Textiles Inc. is a corporation organized, existing
and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
New York, with its main office and principal place of business at 2
Penn Plaza, New York, New York.

Individual respondent Walter Banci is an agent of said corpora-
tions and an officer of Lanificio Tuscania Inc. and Lima Textiles Inc.
and a partner trading and doing business as Lanificio Walter Banci
s.a.8. Lola Conti Banci is a co-partner but is inactive with respect to
the business operations of said company. Walter Banci formulates,
directs and [3] controls the acts and practices of said partnership and
of said corporate respondents, including the acts and practices
hereinafter set forth. His business address is the same as that of the
corporate respondents.

The corporate respondents and Walter Banci constitute a umﬁed
family business operation designed to import and sell in the United
States fabrics produced and exported from Italy by Lanificio Walter
Banci, s.a.s. and distribute such fabrics in commerce.

PAR. 2. Respondents are now and for some time past have been
engaged in the introduction, sale, advertising, and offering for sale,
in commerce, and in the transportation or causing to be transported
in commerce, and in the importation into the United States, of
textile fiber products; and have sold, offered for sale, advertised,
delivered, transported and caused to be transported, textile fiber
products which have been advertised or offered for sale in commerce,
and have sold, offered for sale, advertised, delivered, transported,
and caused to be transported after shipment in commerce, textile
fiber products as the terms “commerce” and “textile fiber product”
are defined in the Textile Fiber Products Identification Act.

PAR. 3. Certain of said textile fiber products were misbranded by
respondents within the intent and meaning of Section 4(a) of the
Textile Fiber Products Identification Act and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder, in that they were falsely and
deceptively stamped, tagged, labeled, invoiced, advertised or other-
wise identified as to the name or amount of the constituent fibers
contained therein.

Among such misbranded textile fiber products, but not limited



890 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS
§

Complaint 91 F.T.C.

thereto, were certain textile fabrics stamped, tagged, labeled or
otherwise identified by respondents as “50% cotton, 35% polyester,
15% nylon” whereas, in truth and in fact, said products contained
substantially different fibers and amounts of fibers than represent-
ed. [4] ‘ .

PAR. 4. Certain of such textile fiber products were misbranded by
respondents in that they were not stamped, tagged, labeled or
otherwise identified as required under the provisions of Section 4(b)
of the Textile Fiber Products Identification Act, and in the manner
and form as prescribed by the rules and regulations promulgated
under said Act.

Among such misbranded textile fiber products, but not limited
thereto, were textile fiber products with labels which failed:

(1) To disclose the true generic names of fibers present; and

(2) To disclose the true percentages of such fibers.

PaAr. 5. Respondents’ textile fiber products described in Paragraph
Four above were imported by the respondents into the United States
and, as particularized in said paragraph, were not stamped, tagged,
labeled, or otherwise identified in accordance with the provisions of
the Textile Fiber Products Identification Act. The invoices of said
imported textile fiber products required by the Tariff Act of 1930
failed to set forth the information with respect to said textile fiber
products required under Section 4(b) of the Textile Fiber Products
Identification Act. The respondents did falsify the consignee’s
declaration provided for in said Tariff Act of 1930 insofar as it
related to said information, in violation of Section 9 of the Textile
Fiber Products Identification Act and Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act.

Par. 6. The acts and practices of respondents as set forth in
Paragraphs Three, Four and Five above were, and are, in violation of
the Textile Fiber Products Identification Act and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder, and constituted, and now
constitute, unfair methods of competition [5] and unfair and
deceptive acts and practices, in commerce, under the Federal Trade
Commission Act. ,

PAR. 7. Respondents now and for some time past have imported for
introduction into commerce, introduced into commerce, sold, trans-
ported, distributed, delivered for shipment, shipped and offered for
sale, in commerce, as “commerce” is defined in the Wool Products
Labeling Act of 1939, wool products, as “wool product” is defined
therein.

PAr. 8. Certain of said wool products were misbranded by
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Wool Products Labeling Act of 1939 and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder, in that they were falsely and deceptively
stamped, tagged, labeled, or otherwise identified with respect to the
character and amount of the constituent fibers contained therein.

Among such misbranded wool products, but not limited thereto,
were certain wool fabrics stamped, tagged, labeled, or otherwise
identified by respondents as “45% acrylic, 30% wool, 25% cotton™
whereas, in truth and in fact, said products contained substantially
different fibers and amounts of fibers than represented.

Par. 9. Certain of said wool products were further misbranded by
respondents in that they were not stamped, tagged, labeled, or
otherwise identified as required under the provisions of Section
4(a)(2) of the Wool Products Labeling Act of 1939 and in the manner
and form as prescribed by the rules and regulations promulgated
under said Act.

Among such misbranded wool products, but not limited thereto,
were wool products, namely wool fabrics, with labels on or affixed
thereto, which failed to disclose the percentage of the total fiber
weight of the said wool products, exclusive of ornamentation [6] not
exceeding 5 per centum of said total fiber weight, of (1) wool, (2)
reprocessed wool, (3) reused wool, (4) each fiber other than wool,
when said percentage by weight of such fiber was 5 per centum or
more, and (5) the aggregate of all other fibers.

PAR. 10. Respondents’ wool products described in Paragraph Nine
above were imported by the respondents into the United States and,
as particularized in said paragraph, were not stamped, tagged,
labeled, or otherwise identified in accordance with the provisions of
the Wool Products Labeling Act of 1939. The respondents in their
invoices of said imported wool products required by the Tariff Act of
1930 failed to set forth the information with respect to said wool
products required under the provisions of the Wool Products
Labeling Act of 1939, to wit, the percentage of the total fiber weight
of the said wool products, exclusive of ornamentation not exceeding 5
per centum of said total fiber weight, of (1) wool, (2) reprocessed
wool, (3) reused wool, (4) each fiber other than wool, when said
percentage by weight of such fiber was 5 per centum or more, and (5)
the aggregate of all other fibers. The respondents did falsify the
consignee’s declaration provided for in said Tariff Act of 1930 insofar
as it related to the above items of information enumerated in this
paragraph, in violation of Section 8 of the Wool Products Labeling
Act of 1939 and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

Par. 11. The acts and practices of the respondents as herein
alleged in Paragraphs Eight, Nine and Ten were, and are, in
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violation of the Wool Products Labeling Act of 1939 and the rules
and regulations promulgated thereunder, and constituted, and now
constitute, unfair methods of competition and unfair and deceptive
acts and practices, in commerce, within the meaning of the Federal
Trade Commission Act. [7]

PAR. 12. Respondents, now and for some time past, have been
engaged in the importation, offering for sale, sale, and distribution of
certain products, namely fabrics. In the course and conduct of their
business as aforesaid, respondents now cause and for some time past
have caused their said products, when sold, to be shipped from the
State of New York to purchasers located in various other States of
the United States, and maintain and at all times mentioned herein
have maintained, a substantial course of trade in said products in
commerce, as “commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commis-
sion Act.

PAR. 13. In the course and conduct of their business, respondents
have misrepresented to their customers the character and amount of
the constituent fibers contained in their products through falsely
and deceptively stamping, tagging, labeling and otherwise identi-
fying said products.

Among such products, but not limited thereto, were fabrics labeled
as “65% acrylic, 25% cotton, 10% nylon” whereas, in truth and in
fact, such products contained substantially different fibers and
amounts of fibers than represented including wool.

PAR. 14. In the course and conduct of their business, respondents
have misrepresented to their customers the shrinkage factor of their
textile products through falsely and deceptively invoicing said
products.

Among such products, but not limited thereto were fabrics
represented as having 1-1 1/2% residual shrinkage whereas, in truth
and in fact, such products shrink substantially more than represent-
ed.

PaR. 15. Respondents in the course and conduct of their business
have made statements on [8] invoices to their customers, misrepre-
senting the fiber content of certain of their products.

Among such misrepresentations, but not limited thereto, were
statements setting forth the fiber content thereof as “55% acrylic,
20% wool, 20% cotton, 5% other fibers” whereas, in truth and in
fact, said products contained substantially different fibers and
amounts of fibers than represented.

PAR. 16. The aforesaid acts and practices of respondents as herein
alleged in Paragraphs Thirteen, Fourteen and Fifteen were and are,
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constitute, unfair methods of competition and unfair and deceptive
acts and practices, in commerce, within the mtent and meaning of
the Federal Trade Commission Act.

INtT1IAL DECISION BY PauL R. TEETOR, ADMINISTRATIVE LAW
JUDGE 4

© NOVEMBER 25, 1977
I
SUMMARY OF COMPLAINT
Identification of Respondents |

Alleging violations of the Wool Products Labeling Act of 1939
(hereafter “the Wool Act”), the Textile Fiber Products Identification
Act (hereafter “the Textile Act”) and Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act (hereafter “the FTC Act”) and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder, on 6/24/75 this Commission
issued its complaint against what Paragraph 1 thereof alleges to be
“a unified family business operation.” It is said to be made up of
Verrazzano Trading Corporation, Francesco Datini Inc., Lanificio
Tuscania Inc., Lima Textiles Inc. (all New York corporations with an
office in New York City) and one Walter Banci, personally, as an
officer and agent for said corporations and as a partner in an Italian
company, Lanificio Walter Banci s.a.s. His wife, Lola Conti Banci, is
alleged to be an inactive partner. [An amendment to the complaint
allowed by the administrative law judge without objection on
2/10/76 added Hudson Textile, Inc. (also a New York corporatlon) as
an additional respondent and alleged participant in the same
enterprise.] This “unified family business” is alleged in Paragraph 1
to be designed to import and sell in the United States and distribute
in “commerce” their fabrics produced and exported from Italy by
Lanificio Walter Banci s.a.s.

“Commerce” Allegations

Complaint Paragraph 2 alleges that respondents engage in
importing, transporting, advertising, offering and selling textile fiber
products and introducing them in “commerce,” both phrases being
defined as in the Textile Fiber Products Identification Act (hereafter
the “Textile Act”). [2]

Paragraph 7 alleges that respondents engage in importing,
transporting, distributing, offering, selling, shipping and delivering
wool products and introducing them in “commerce” (both phrases
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being defined as in the Wool Products Labeling Act (hereafter the
“Wool Act”). .

Paragraph 12 alleges that respondent engage in importing,
distributing, offering and selling fabrics generally, shipping such
fabrics, when sold, from the State of New York to purchasers located
in various states, the same amounting to a “substantial course of
trade” in “commerce,” as defined in the Federal Trade Commission
Act (hereafter the “FTC Act”).

Alleged Violations of the Textile Act

Complaint Paragraph 3 pleads a violation of Section 4(a) of the
Textile Act, which prohibits “misbranding,” i.e, false and deceptive
identification of the name or amount of constituents in textile fabrics.
An example of such misbranding is said to be the identification of a
textile fabric as “50% cotton, 35% polyester, 15% nylon” when the
constituent fibers and amounts thereof are, in fact, “substantially
different.”

Complaint Paragraph 6 adds that such violation of Section 4(a) of
the Textile Act, by virtie of Section 7 thereof, automatically
constitutes, in addition, an unfair practice under the FTC Act.

Complaint Paragraph 4 pleads a violation of Section 4(b) of the
Textile Act, which prohibits “misbranding” i.e., non-attachment or
non-affixation of specified identifying data of textile fiber products.
An example of such misbranding is said to be the non-disclosure on
textile fiber product labels of the true generic names of fibers
present or the true percentages of such fibers therein contained.

Complaint Paragraph 6 adds that such violation of the Textile Act,
by virtue of Section 7 thereof, automatically constitutes, in addition,
an unfair practice under the FTC Act. [3]

Complaint Paragraph 5 pleads a violation of Section 9 of the
Textile Act, which prohibits importation into the United States of
textile fiber products “misbranded” under Section 4 of the act (above).
In elaboration, Paragraph 5 explains that the required identifying
information was omitted from so-called Tariff Act invoices and
falsified on so-called Tariff Act consignee-declarations.

Complaint Paragraph 6 adds that such violation of Section 9 of the
Textile Act, by virtue of Section 7 thereof, automatically constitutes,
in addition, an unfair practice under the FTC Act.

Alleged Violations of the Wool Act
Complaint Paragraph 8 pleads a violation of Section 4(aX1) of the
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randing”) of wool products. An example of such misbranding is said .
to be the identification of certain wool fabrics as “45% acrylic, 30%
wool, 25% cotton,” whereas said fabrics in fact contained “substan-
tially different” fibers or amounts of fibers. Complaint Paragraph 11
adds that such violation of the Wool Act, by virtue of Section 6
thereof, automatically constitutes, in addition, an unfair practice
under the FTC Act.

Complaint Paragraph 9 pleads a violation of Section 4(a)(2) of the
Wool Act, which prohibits non-attachment or non-affixation of
specified identifying data (“misbranding”) of wool products. An
example of such misbranding is said to be failure to disclose by a
label on or affixed to a wool product the percentage of total fiber
weight! which is: [4]

(1) wool

(2) reprocessed wool

(3) re-used wool

(4) each non-wool fiber representing 5% or more of total weight
(5) the aggregate of all other fibers.

Complaint Paragraph 11 adds that such violation of the Wool Act,
by virtue of Section 6 thereof, automatically constitutes, in addition,
an unfair practice under the FTC Act.

Complaint Paragraph 10 pleads a violation of Section 8 of the Wool
Act, which prohibits importation into the United States of wool
products “misbranded” under Section 4 of the act (above). In
elaboration, Paragraph 10 explains that required identifying infor-
mation was omitted from so-called Tariff Act invoices and falsified
on so-called Tariff Act consignee-declarations. Complaint Paragraph
11 adds that such violation of the Wool Act, by virtue of Section 6
thereof, automatically constitutes, in addition, an unfair practice
under the FTC Act.

Alleged Violations of Federal Trade Commission Act*

Complaint Paragraph 13 pleads a violation of Section 5 of the FTC
Act, which prohibits unfair and deceptive trade practices, alleging
misrepresentation of the character and amount of constituent fibers
in respondents’ fabrics. An example pleaded is the [5] labeling of
fabrics “65% acrylic, 75% cotton, 10% nylon,” whereas, in fact, such

1 Exclusive of or tation not ding 5% of total fiber weight.

s Complaint Paragraphs 18, 14 and 15 plead unfair trade practices under Section 5 of the FTC Act which do not
(unlike earlier allegations of unfair practices) derive tically from a Textile Act or Wool Act violation and
which, in fact, for one reason or another, could not have been made the basis for a Textile Act or Wool Act charge.
The “public interest” finding requisite to all three FTC Act charges is pleaded in complaint Paragraph 16.
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fabrics contained ‘“substantially different” kinds and amounts of
fibers, including wool.®

Complaint Paragraph 14 pleads a violation of Section 5 of the FT'C
Act, which prohibits unfair and deceptive trade practices, alleging
misrepresentation of the shrinkage factor* in respondents’ textile
products. An example pleaded is a representation that fabrics have
1-1 1/2% residual shrinkage whereas, in truth, such fabrics shrink
“substantially more” than represented.

Complaint Paragraph 15 pleads a violation of Section 5 of the FTC
Act, which prohibits unfair and deceptive trade practices, alleging
misrepresentation by means of commercial (ie, non-Tariff Act)
invoices® concerning certain products’ fiber content. An example
pleaded is a representation that fiber content is [6] “565% acrylic,
20% wool, 20% cotton, 5% other fibers,” whereas, in fact, such
products contain “substantially different” kinds and amounts of
fibers than represented.

Complaint Paragraph 16 pleads the public interest in prosecution
which must exist to justify bringing charges (as in Paragraphs 13, 14
and 15) under Section 5 of the FTC Act (as distinguished from either
the Wool Act or Textile Act).

Proposed Order

A proposed order, served with the complaint, contemplates cease
and desist orders against all respondents, which orders would
prohibit: (1) misbranding textile fiber products by false or deceptive
identification of the name or amount of constituent fibers or by
failing to affix each element of information required by Section 4(b)
of the Textile Fiber Products Identification Act; (2) importing textile
fiber products into the United States except upon filing a bond in
double import value to comply with the Textile Fiber Products
Identification Act; (8) misbranding wool products by false or
deceptive identification of the character or amount of constituent
fibers or by failing to affix each element of information required by
Section 4(a)(2) of the Wool Products Labeling Act; (4) importing wool
products into the United States except upon filing a bond in double

* The significance of wool traces lies in making such a fabric a “wool product” and thus exempt from

application of the Textile Act, at least according to laint counsel's r ing, as will be di d at page 32
below,

¢ A misrepresentation concerning a fabric's shrinkage potential must be pleaded under the FTC Act because
both the Textile Act and the Wool Act are concerned only with the kinds and tities of fibers contained in a

fabric.
* Misrepresentation of the fiber content of a wool product must be charged under the FTC Act if the
instrumentality of the misrepresentation is an ordinary commercial invoice (as distinguished from a so-called
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import value to comply with the Wool Products Labeling Act; (5)
~ misrepresenting the character or amount of constituent fibers or the
shrinkage factor of wool and/or textile products in any manner,
including identification in invoices.

Respondents would also be required to give notice of misbranding
* to those customers who have bought misbranded products; to notify
this Commission of changes in business affiliation or employment; to
give notice to the Commission 30 days before making any structural
change in their business which might affect compliance with this
order; and to distribute copies of this order throughout their
organization. [7]

I

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

From the issuance of the Commission’s complaint on 6/24/75 to
the filing of this initial decision on 11/25/77, a period of nearly two
and a half years has elapsed. To one uninitiated in the lengthy
discovery procedures and complex motion practice that have come to
characterize Commission proceedings for the purpose of satisfying
the requirements of due process of law for businessmen, it might
appear that the administrative law judge and the parties put this
relatively small and largely indefensible® case on the back burner for
many months at a time.

On the contrary, the two and a half years were crowded with
constant motions and discovery procedures. Aside from an inexplica-
ble delay by the contract reporter of more than three months in
correcting the pagination and other clerical errors of this relatively
small trial transcript, there was almost never a period of time when

~some pre-trial, trial or post-trial procedure was not in the offing.
- Lest there be any question on this score, we have compiled a
detailed procedural history of this matter which is attached hereto
as Appendix I, to which any reader interested in the facts of this case
or any student interested in its implications for the future of
administrative jurisprudence is hereby referred. We now turn
directly to our findings of fact, which are notably briefer than the
procedural history of their evocation. [8]

——
¢ On 11/16/76, respondents’ counsel stated frankly in open court: “Now my fight will have to be a weak one
since I have nothing to show on Banci's side but I still have the right to put the Commission to its proof.” (Tr. 76.)
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I

FINDINGS OF FAcT

Parties

1. The sole individual respondent and principal figure in this
matter is Walter Banci, partner with his wife, Lola Conti Banci, in a
business known as Lanificio Walter Banci s.a.s. (Original Complaint;
Ans. I, § 1; Ans. IL, § 1; Ans. ITI, § 1), a firm which operates two
textile mills near Prato, Italy (Tr. 78).

2. For some years Banci has sold his textiles in the United States
through several corporations, all organized and existing under the
laws of New York. (Original Complaint; Ans. I, § 1; Ans. II, § 1; Ans.
I, § 1). :

8. Four of these New York corporations were named as respon-
dents in the original complaint here:

Verrazzano Trading Corp. (hereafter “Verrazzano™)
Francesco Datini Inc. (hereafter “Datini”)

Lanificio Tuscania Inc. (hereafter “Tuscania”)

Lima Textiles Inc. (hereafter “Lima”)

(Original Complaint; Ans. I, § 1; Ans. II, § 1; Ans. I1I, § 1)

4. A fifth corporation, named Hudson Textile Corporation
(hereafter “Hudson”), also organized and existing under the laws of
New York, was subsequently joined as -a respondent without
objection (Amended Complaint; Ans. III, § 1; failure of original
respondents to deny amended complaint). [9]

5. All respondents together have constituted a unified family
business operation designed to import and sell in the United States

“wool and textile products manufactured by Lanificio Walter Banci
s.a.s. (RA 1, § 642, Amended Complaint and Ans. II, § 1; see also an
earlier Verrazzano case, reported in 1971 in 78 F.T.C. 637, at 668.

6. Respondent Banci has formulated, directed and controlled the
acts and practices of this unified family business operation, both the
Italian family partnership (Lanificio Walter Banci s.a.s.) and the
American corporate respondents, including the acts and practices
challenged in the complaint here. (RA I, § 641; Complaint § 1; Ans. I,
§ 1; Ans. II, § 1; Amended Complaint § 1; Ans. 11, § 1). As his
counsel put it: “. . . Mr. Banci’s operation is such that he really is
the man who does everything. . .” (Tr. 77).

7. All respondents were actively doing business from an office at
2 Penn Plaza in New York City (their only office in the United
States, on this record) at least from 1/1/69-through 9/1/75 (ALJ

9,
S
“Annlinatinn NFf Qanctiane TTndax PDula £ 92920 Tae Teilaeen OO



VERRAZZANO TRADING CORP., ET AL. 899
888 ' Initial Decision

Respondents To Make Discovery As Ordered,” dated 4/16/76, at pp.
6-7.) ‘

8. During the years in question here, respondents admit, fabric
manufactured by Lanificio Walter Banci s.a.s. was shipped to the
United States in substantial quantities (Tr. 58). Moreover, we have
earlier found that since January 1972 and for the time period
covered by the complaint respondents have maintained a substantial
course of trade in wool and textile products in the United States.
(“ALJ’s Application Of Sanctions Under Rule § 3.38 For Failure Of
Respondents To Make Discovery As Ordered,” dated 4/16/76, at pp.
4-6) We have further found that since January 1972 respondents
have sold to United States customers substantial quantities of each

“of many specific textile products (including qualities Sioux, Manito,
Totem, Veruska, Navajo, Ingrid and Myla) and wool products
(including qualities Marnie, Gretel, Isabel, Spluga, Eva, and Ellen).
[10] (ALJ’s “Application Of Sanctions Under Rule § 3.38 For Failure
Of Respondents To Make Discovery As Ordered » dated 4/16/176, at
pp- 4-6.)

9. It is conceded by complamt counsel that after issuance of this
complaint and at least by November 1976, respondents were no
longer doing business in the United States and that their New York
City office was closed by then. (Tr. 78.)

10. This record is barren of evidence, however, as to whether
Banci may or may not resume his American sales, either through the
present corporate respondents or through other vehicles.”

Importation and Sale in Commerce

11. All the original respondents, including Walter Banci, in their
Answers admitted the allegations of complaint Paragraphs 2, T and
12,% [11] concerning respondent’s engagement in the importation of

* Subsequent to the closing of the record here both sides made claims on this subject but neither moved to re-

open the record to take further evid . When submitting his proj findi 1 for respondents reported
(but without benefit of afﬁdavnt) that Lanificio Walter Banci s.a.5. was adjudicated bankrupt in Prato, Italy on
9/2/71. Complaint tered by attaching to their reply brief unverified copies of Customs records of a

Banci sale to a New York customer as late as 9/29/77. We view both submissions as improper and we shall attach
no weight to either.
* The complaint allegations thus admitted are as follows:
“Paragraph Two: Respondents are now and for some time past have been d in the introduction, sale,
advertising, and offering for sale, in commerce, and in the transportation or causing to be transported in
commerce, and in the importation into the United States, of textile fiber products; and have sold, offered for
sale, advertised, delivered, transported and caused to be transported, textile fiber products which have been
advertised or offered for sale in commerce, and have sold, offered for sale, advertised, delivered,
transported, and caused to be transported after shipment in commerce, textile fiber products as the terms
“commerce” and “textile fiber product” are defined in the Textile Fiber Products ldentification Act.”
Paragraph Seven: Respondents now and for some time past have imported for introduction into commerce,
introduced into , sold, transported, distributed, delivered for shipment, shipped and offered for
sale, in commerce, as “commeme is defined in the Wool Products Labeling Act of 1939, wool products, as
“wool product” is defined therein.”

(Continued)
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textile fiber and wool products into the United States and their sale
and shipment, etc. thereof from New York to other states, in [12]
commerce, as ‘“coinmerce” is defined in the Wool, Textile and FTC
Acts. (Original Complaint; Ans. I, § 2; Ans. II, § 2).

12. When Hudson Textile Corporation was subsequently Jomed
as a respondent, its Answer to the amended complaint, for no reason
that has yet become apparent, denied the commerce allegations
found in complaint Paragraphs 2, 7 and 12.°* However, respondent
Hudson’s Answer to the amended complaint admitted most of the
allegations of complaint Paragraph 1, including an allegation that
“the corporate respondents” — which by then included Hudson —
together with respondent Banci, constituted “a unified family
business operation designed to import and sell in the United States
fabrics produced and exported from Italy by Lanificio Walter Banci
s.a.8. and distribute such fabrics in commerce.” (Complaint, § 1;
“Order Granting Amendment Of The Complaint,” dated 2/9/76;
Ans. III, § 1). As a part of this “unified family business operation,”
respondent Hudson, was necessarily engaged in the business’
importation of wool and textile products from Italy into the United
States and the sale, shipment, etc. of such products “in commerce”
from New York to other states and we now so find.

Investigation of Possible Misbranding

13. In 1971 this Commission agreed to dismiss misbranding
charges against most of the same respondents on condition that they
would voluntarily comply with the misbranding laws. See Verrazza-
no Trading Corporation t/a Lan Etruria, et al, 78 F.T.C. 637, 675
(1971).

14. Between 1973 and 1975 the Commission conducted a new
investigation into possible misbranding by respondents of woolen
and other textiles imported from Italy into the United States and
thereafter distributed in interstate commerce. [13]

Sample Sources

15. Many samples of respondents’ imported fabrics were obtained
from the United States Customs Service in New York City and many

“Paragraph Twelve: Respondents, now and for some time past, have been engaged in the importation,
offering for sale, sale, and distribution of certain products, namely fabrics. In the course and conduct of
their busi as afe dents now cause and for some time past have caused their said products,
when sold, to be shipped from the State of New York to purchasers located in various other States of the
United States, and maintain and at all times mentioned herein have maintained, a substantial course of
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others were obtained from United States customers of respondents,
including the following: '

Bobbie Brooks, Inc., 3830 Kelley Ave., Cleveland, Ohio (Tr. 374-75)

Ivy International, Ltd., 119 W. 40th St., New York, N.Y. RATI, |
45, 1 150, § 170; RA III, { 28)

MelRose Mfg. Co., 712 Commerce St., Dallas, Texas (RAIL, {1, 1 2;
RAIIL 7 17,9 18)

Jones of Dallas Mfg., Inc., 2316 N. Griffin St., Dallas, Texas (RA II,
115, 1 16; RAIII, 1 19, § 20)

Abbott Fabrics, Inc., 1412 Broadway, New York, N.Y. (RA I, 47,
1] 48, 149; RAIIL, § 21, 7 22, 1 23)

Artbro Sportswear, Inc., 1407 Broadway, New York, N.Y. RAII, §
88; RA 11, { 25)

F. Resnick, Inc., 242 W. 39th St., New York, N.Y. (RA II, { 107;
RA III, 1 26)

Fabri-Centers of America, Inc., 23550 Commerce Park, Beachwood,
" Ohio(RAL 19; RAIIL | 2)

Sample Quantity

16. Although respondents concede that their total imports of
wool and other textile products into the United States during the
period in question were “substantial”, (Tr. 58), they have declined to
[14] provide data on the total quantltles 10 ijmported. It is therefore
impossible, because of respondents’ contumacy, to determine with
any precision what percentage of their total imports during that
period have been sampled.

17. However, the record shows that 58 undisputed samples were
taken (RA T, 119, 38, §55; RATIIL | 1, 2, 15-18, 47-49, 87-88, 107-8,
145; RA 111,  1-30; RA V, § 1-40) and that the shipments from which
they were taken totaled over 1,185,000 yards of woolen and other
textile products. [Of this total, customs samples account for about
550,000 yards (see App. II. Col.) and one customer (Bobbie Brooks,
Inc.) for 635,000 yards. (Tr. 374-375).] : _

18. We find that the woolen and other textile products from
which the above samples were taken represent a very substantial

1 Respondents did reveal that the value of their imports to the United States was 1.424 billion lire in 1974 and

.271 billion lire in 1975. At the exchange rate as published (.001543) in the “Bank & Quotation Record M
of January 1975, these figures would convert to 2.2 million dollars and .4 million dollars, respectively.







